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Ohio Treasurer of State 

Request for Proposal for Banking Services 

Respondent Questions and Treasurer’s Office Answers 

December 4, 2015 

Respondent Question Treasurer’s Office Answer 

1- Courier services 

1 

Can you provide a listing of the 
locations that would need a deposit 
pick-up from a courier service? 
 

Currently, two State of Ohio entities (including 
the Treasurer’s Office) utilize a courier for their 
locations in central Ohio. 
 
Additionally, the Ohio State Highway Patrol 
utilizes armored carrier office locations across 
Ohio. 

2 

Is it required for a respondent to 
contractually sign and hold your 
armored courier contract on behalf 
of the State? Would a respondent 
be disqualified or receive a lower 
evaluation score if they were not 
able to contractually sign and hold 
your armored contract? 

The State Treasurer’s Office is willing to discuss 
different courier contract options. 

3 

If an armored courier contract is 
signed and held by the Respondent 
(bank services provider), does the 
State wish to make payment via 
account analysis and utilize 
earnings credit or pay for the 
invoice separately? 

Courier-related fees would appear on the 
account analysis statement and, if available, 
earnings credits would be used to offset those 
fees. 

4 

Can you provide the details of pick 
up schedules, volumes of items to 
be picked up, liability limits, and 
any restrictions to service (times, 
firearms, etc.). 

All normal Business Days as necessary.  
Volumes will vary depending on state events, 
i.e., the Ohio State Fair in July.  
 
Highway Patrol Officers will not surrender 
firearms if dropping cash at a facility for 
handling.  

2- Format of response 

1 

The RFP currently limits the 
number of pages to 150, including 
all appendices.  Would the State be 
open to increasing the minimum 
page requirement? 
 

No.  Please note: Appendix 4, Pricing Pro 
Formas, are not included in the 150-page limit. 
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2 
Please provide permission to use 
your logo in response. 

Respondents may use the Treasurer of State logo 
in their responses. Such use is limited to this 
RFP.  

3 

May a respondent decline to bid on 
a portion of the pro formas? I.e. 
can a respondent select which 
accounts/agencies we prefer to bid 
on? How should this be indicated 
in Appendix 4? 

A respondent may choose not to bid on certain 
RFP portions by responding “Respondent wishes 
to not bid” on a particular portion/section. 

4 

If neither our most recent SSAE 16 
or Type II Document is available, 
is a comparable document allowed?  

The SSAE 16 is preferred.  If the Respondent is 
unable to provide that information, please 
provide a comparable document and the 
Treasurer’s Office will review and determine if 
acceptable.  

5 
Our 10-Q report is very long.  Do 
you want 2 hard copies or will a 
hyperlink in our response suffice? 

Please follow the RFP instructions and provide 
two (2) hard copies of the 10-Q report. 

6 

Please verify that any report or 
document reports or samples 
requested in the RFP will not count 
in the 150-page limitation, such as 
4.6, question 3., for samples of 
prior-day and intra-day reports. 

These items will not count toward the 150-page 
limit. 

7 

Please verify the RFP exhibits 1, 2, 
and 3 do not count in the total page 
count, as they are not Q&A and are 
required by the Board. 

Those exhibits will not count toward the 150-
page limit. 

3 - Prepaid cards 

1 

Can you provide some example 
potential use cases for prepaid card 
services?  

Examples include the distribution of 
unemployment benefits, delivering public 
employee payroll, and providing other public 
benefits. 

2 
Prepaid: Are these per diem or 
incentive?  

Both per diem and incentive.  

3 

Prepaid: Are the cards single load 
or reloadable? And does the State 
want ATM/Cash back access with 
prepaid cards?  

Single load and reloadable. ATM access is 
needed for prepaid cards. Cash back access may 
be needed with merchant category code (MCC) 
controls. 

4 
How many cards annually and 
what is the average load amount? 

Approximately 6,500 cards annually with 
average load amount greater than $25.00. 

4 - Volumes 

1 
Can the State please confirm all 
volumes provided are annualized? 

The volumes found in Appendix 3 are for July 1, 
2014 through June 30, 2015. 

2 
Can the state please clarify the 
volume for line item “RDC 
AGENT CLEAR” is derived? 

Volumes were taken directly from monthly EDI 
822 files. 
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5 -  ACH 

1 

Can you please provide the average 
and peak dollar volume of ACH 
transactions by account? 

Appendix 3 provides the number of ACH units 
(per account) and average balance for a 12-
month period. The Treasurer’s Office does not 
report peak volume activity per account. 

2 

Does the State currently use ACH 
Accounts receivables Conversion 
(ARC) or Back Office Conversion 
(BOC)?  

The Treasurer’s Office uses remote deposit 
capture machines to scan checks and create an 
ACH file. 

3 

Please describe any special return 
item processing/instructions 
currently in place? 

Return notices for the Treasurer’s Office 
accounts are sent to the Treasurer Cashier 
Department for handling.  Individual state 
agencies will have varying return handling 
procedures.  

6 -  Analysis statements 

1 

Will the State consider truncating 
all paper DDA and analysis 
statements if they are available 
online and through the EDI 822?  

Provided all data is available in full detail online, 
the Treasurer’s Office may, at its discretion, 
consider truncating paper DDA and analysis 
statements.  

7 - Branch locations 

1 

Can you provide a listing of 
agencies with addresses that 
currently utilize a branch for 
deposit?  

www.ohio.gov provides a listing of all state 
agencies across Ohio.  You may use that to find 
addresses for agency accounts listed in 
Appendix 3.   

8 - Coin and currency 

1 

Can the State please provide the 
following breakdown of 
coin/currency deposits: 
 
-Total dollar amount of branch coin 
deposits 
-Total dollar amount of branch 
cash deposits 
-Total dollar amount of vault coin 
deposits 
-Total dollar amount of vault cash 
deposits 

Appendix 3 information provides the accounts’ 
average ledger balances and number of units 
assessed (i.e., number of units of branch and 
vault deposits). A breakdown of coin/currency 
deposits will not be provided. 
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2 

Can the State please provide the 
following breakdown of 
coin/currency orders: 
 
-Total dollar amount of branch coin 
furnished 
-Total dollar amount of branch 
cash furnished 
-Total dollar amount of vault coin 
furnished 
-Total dollar amount of vault cash 
furnished 

Appendix 3 information provides the accounts’ 
average ledger balance and number of units 
assessed.  A breakdown of coin/currency orders 
will not be provided.  If possible, please provide 
tiered pricing for branch/vault cash and coin 
orders. 

3 

Can the State clarify if the line item 
titled “Vault Deposit” is the total 
dollar amount of coin/currency 
deposited or the number of deposits 
made? 

The “Vault Deposit” line item is the number of 
deposits completed during the timeframe, not the 
total dollar amount. 

4 

Can the State clarify if the line item 
titled “Branch Deposit” is the total 
dollar amount of coin/currency 
deposited or the number of deposits 
made? 

The “Branch Deposit” line item is the number of 
deposits that were made during the timeframe, 
not the total dollar amount. 

5 
What is the current charge basis for 
currency/coin deposited (i.e. per 
$1, per $100, etc.)? 

The current charge basis for deposited currency 
(AFP Code 10 00 15) is per $100.00. 

9 - Unencoded checks 

1 

In reference to the volumes of 
encoded and unencoded checks, 
please provide the percentage of 
checks deposited through branches 
versus vault? 

The majority of deposited unencoded checks are 
from state agencies completing deposits at a 
bank branch.  A breakdown of unencoded check 
deposits will not be provided. 

2 
Are unencoded checks deposited 
through branch, vault, or remote 
deposit? 

Yes, all three are utilized for unencoded checks. 

3 
Please describe how checks are 
deposited that are listed under the 
“unencoded checks bundled”?  

State agencies and the Treasurer’s Office 
completing deposits via deposit capture or at a 
bank branch would be included in unencoded. 

10 - Remote deposit capture and image cash letter 
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1 

Does the State currently use both 
Remote Deposit Capture and Image 
Cash Letter? If so, can the State 
direct respondents to ICL volumes 
on Appendix 3? 

The Treasurer’s Office and state agencies utilize 
Deposit Capture. 
 
The volume information included in Appendix 3 
for the State Main Account for AFP Codes 10 02 
1B and 10 02 10 reflects ICL transactions.  
However, the Treasurer’s Office recently 
stopped utilizing Image Cash Letter (ICL) with 
implementation of deposit capture services. 

2 
Can the State please provide the 
current scanner models used for 
RDC? 

Epson TMS1000, Kodak I-2400, Chex Press 
CX30. 

3 

Please provide an explanation of 
volume listed as RDC Clear 
Agent? For example, are these 
check deposits through remote 
deposit or image cash letter (ICL)? 

RDC Clear Agent is referring to Image Cash 
Letter (ICL).  The Treasurer’s Office recently 
moved from ICL to deposit capture. 

11 - Undefined depository services 

1 
What are Undefined Depository 
Services? 

Undefined Depository Services are items listed 
without a specific bank code provided.  

12 -  Lockbox services 

1 
Would the State consider a lockbox 
address outside of the state of 
Ohio? 

 A lockbox address outside of Ohio will not 
automatically exclude a Respondent; however, 
an Ohio address is a consideration.  

2 
Is preference provided for 
providers with an Ohio Lockbox? 

Some state agencies express a preference to have 
an Ohio remittance address for lock box items, 
and that preference may be considered.   

3 

If the Ohio Lockbox is a 
requirement and the provider does 
not offer an Ohio Lockbox, should 
the bidder provide pricing for 
agencies that require lockbox 
services? Should the bidder 
indicate on the pricing for a NO 
Bid for that agency? 

An Ohio based lock box is not a specific 
requirement.  A “No Bid” portion response is at 
the discretion of the Respondent. 

4 

Can you provide examples of 
lockbox remittances? 

State agencies utilize several retail and 
wholesale lock boxes.  Specific lockbox 
remittance examples may be provided, if deemed 
necessary by the Treasurer’s Office, during 
contract negotiations.   

5 
How many acceptable payees are 
setup per lock box? 

One payee per lock box. 

6 

For the retail lock box, do the 
coupons include an OCR scan line?  
What percentage of items is 
received with the coupon? 

Yes, an OCR scan line is included.  The majority 
of items received include one item. 
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7 
For lock box: Please describe the 
sorting being conducted? 

Sorting is conducted per assigned PO Box 
address. 

8 
For lock box: Please describe the 
special handling being conducted? 

Special keying is completed, if necessary. 

13 - Appendix 3 electronic file 

1 
Would it be possible to get the 
Appendix 3 data in an Excel 
spreadsheet? 

An Excel version of Appendix 3 will be sent to 
all persons who requested the RFP via email. 

2 

If a 10-year image archive is 
provided for checks and documents 
through lock box, would you need 
any paper items returned other than 
unprocessable items? If yes, please 
provide details? 

A 10-year image archive of checks and 
documents through lock box will suffice.  

14 - Liquidity 

1 
Liquidity: Can the State provide a 
12-month history of bank deposit 
balances? 

Appendix 3 provides average 12-month ledger 
balance per account. 

2 
Liquidity: What type of sweep 
investments do they utilize today? 

Sweep investments include money market, 
interest, and non-interest bearing accounts.  

15 - Community Reinvestments Act 

1 

Please clarify your use of the term 
“Bank Services” in the context of 
questions 4.7, 4.8, and 4.9? 

Questions 4.7 and 4.8, request Respondent to 
elaborate on the Respondent’s Community 
Reinvestments Act (CRA) involvement and use 
of subcontractors.   
 
The RFP does not contain a question 4.9. 

16 - Earnings credit 

1 
Under 8.0 Earnings credit, why are 
you requiring the 3 month LIBOR 
rate vs. the 1 month as an index? 

The 3 month LIBOR rate is the rate historically 
used by the Treasurer’s Office. The rate is 
subject to negotiation. 

17 - Deposits 

1 

What is the driver for question 5.0 
5b? 

The Treasurer’s Office and/or other state 
agencies may take some deposits (cash/checks) 
directly to a bank branch versus sending most 
deposits electronically.  Please specify if your 
financial institution has different daily cut off 
times for teller deposits versus remote deposit 
(electronically). 

2 
Question 5.0 5b continued: Have 
you had issues with the existing cut 
off time? If so, what issues? 

The Treasurer’s Office seeks to understand 
Respondent’s deposit policy for same day ledger 
credit.  
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3 

Question concerning 5.0 7k: Is the 
current information on your deposit 
slip(s) not specific enough? 

The Treasurer’s Office may specify the inclusion 
of a location number within the deposit ticket 
MICR line.  This inclusion allows reporting to 
assist with reconciliation. Other deposit slip 
information includes agency (account) name and 
address. 


